1957

Vinal Millett v. Gloria Langston : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The problems presented in this case are: What business agreement existed between the parties for establishing a trailer court in Moab, Utah; has such agreement been terminated and if so, when; and what are the present obligations of each party to the other. There was no written agreement between the parties (R. 45), and their testimony shows substantial disagreement on the above questions. The nature of the business agreement, its duration, and the obligations can be established only from the legal implications of the evidence.

In May, 1954, Vinal Millett (Respondent here, but Plaintiff below and so identified herein) discussed trailer court possibilities with his niece, Gloria Langston, (Appellant here, but Defendant below and so referred to herein). Plaintiff had no specific property in mind (R. 46, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 4). He discussed Moab, Utah, as a location because of its boom-town character, but had never gone there to investigate (R. 46, 79).

At that time, Plaintiff, a carpenter (R. 36), was seasonally unemployed (R. 51), and was on unemployment relief (R. 51). Plaintiff was a favorite brother of Defendant's mother (R. 104), and family ties had been very close (R. 106). Plaintiff needed financial help (R. 107), and in March and on May 17, 1954, Defendant gave Plaintiff \$60 to pay on a loan, a portion of which was for purchase of Plaintiff's car (R. 57, 83). Plaintiff was anxious to find security in some permanent work (R. 107, 108), and states he consented to let Defendant participate in his plan for trailer court development because she had a little money (R. 36, 37). Defendant states she was investigating a possible way to help him (Ex. 4: Dep. GL 7).

In May, 1954, Defendant and her mother, together with Plaintiff, drove to Moab (R. 36). The parties proposed to rent land and establish a trailer court, with the Defendant supplying necessary funds until money could be obtained from the operations, and with the Plaintiff providing the work required (R. 37, 46, 48, 79). Plaintiff stated:

“Well, we were to go in on this, and she was to furnish the necessary cash down payment and cash as far as it went until we got on paying basis and me stay down there and put it over.” (Ex. 2: Dep. VM 4; R. 37.)

Efforts to rent property in Moab were unsuccessful (R. 79). About May 20, 1954, Defendant purchased five (5) acres from a Frank Peterson for \$1,100 an acre, with payments of \$1200 down, and \$100 a month thereafter (R. 48, 81). Defendant paid the earnest money of \$500, and the balance of the \$1,200 down payment, took title in her name, and has made the payments subsequently (R. 54, 86, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 17). Plaintiff signed no papers, made no payments on the land, and assumed no obligations for paying for the land (R. 48, 54, 55, 56); nor was he to provide any money at any time (R. 56).

Plaintiff states he demanded a one-third interest in the land for himself and one-third for his brother, Ira, and that the Defendant refused to include their names in the transaction (R. 36). Plaintiff alleges and the Defendant denies that their names were to be included later (Ex. 2: Dep. VM 7, 8, R. 82). The Plaintiff, the Defendant and a real estate man named Bill Allen were present (R. 45). The Plaintiff recalled that Mrs. Boshard, his sister and the Defendant's mother, was also present (R. 45), but Mrs. Boshard denies this (R. 102).

The parties proceeded to establish a trailer court on the land purchased by Defendant (R. 45), with Plaintiff moving to Moab in May, 1954 and remaining

there until July, 1955 (Ex. 2: Dep. VM 5). During that period improvements were made and installations made for a trailer court. These include six small rental cabins, two bathhouses for use of trailer occupants, two wells, and two septic tanks, together with necessary bulldozer work, plumbing, electrical work, and similar work. (Ex. 2: Dep. VM 8, 12, R. 27 Answer #26, R. 90).

Plaintiff contends that all materials necessary for seven cabins were secured from Ira Millett and delivered precut to Moab in a truck hired by Defendant (R. 49, 50). The first cabin was erected by Ira in order to show Plaintiff how to assemble such cabins (R. 72, 113). The remainder were erected by Plaintiff with some help (R. 37, 38). Plaintiff states that the materials obtained from Ira were to entitle Ira to a one-third share of the property (R. 49, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 21). Ira stated he had received some \$25, or \$41 from Defendant, but no other payments (R. 70). He never submitted a bill to Defendant (R. 72). Defendant maintains that the materials were acquired by Ira in his name because he operated a sawmill and small lumber yard and it was thought he could get better prices, but that she made payments for such materials directly to Tri-State Lumber Co. and to Frank I. Larsen Lumber Company and that she does not owe Ira any balance (R. 111). She admits Plaintiff may have obtained some 2 x 2s from Ira but that she was not a party to any such transaction and knows no details (R. 113). The parties agree that Gloria terminated any relations with Ira shortly after Plaintiff moved to Moab (R. 39, 71).

Defendant signed a new contract to acquire additional acres, making a total of 14.57 acres, and agreed to pay an additional \$100 a month on the contract (R. 81). Defendant states the purchase was made by her after being offered to her by the real estate man (R. 81). Plaintiff states he arranged the second purchase and said he would take the deal if Defendant did not (R. 54).

The Plaintiff remained in Moab from May, 1954, until the middle of July, 1955 (R. 40, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 8), except for six or more visits to Salt Lake City to see his wife (R. 53). During this period the Plaintiff had no other employment or source of income (R. 52, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 26), except for the month of June, 1955, when he worked as a carpenter on the new Moab post office (R. 40). During Plaintiff's stay in Moab, Defendant visited the trailer court several times (R. 65).

Plaintiff performed labor on the construction of the trailer court, but also employed third parties to do certain of the work (R. 38, 63). Payment for the services of these persons was made either from the gross collections of the trailer court (R. 63, 64), from the Defendant's personal funds (R. 38, 63, 64), or in some instances by giving free rental or by the transfer of certain of the realty which Defendant had purchased (R. 63).

During the period from May, 1954, to July 1955, rentals for use of the trailer court facilities were collected (R. 62). The Plaintiff states that all such rentals were collected by third parties hired by him to represent

him for this purpose (R. 62, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 11, 18). Such third persons issued receipts for such money collected and retained a carbon copy of such receipts. The carbons, together with the money collected, were turned over to the Plaintiff (R. 62, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 18). Subsequently, Plaintiff delivered to the Defendant such carbons of the receipts, together with copies of bills and other records in his possession. None of the monies collected were turned over to or sent to the Defendant (R. 28, line 1; 54, 56, 134). At the trial the Plaintiff testified that the Defendant made some collections while visiting the trailer court (R. 66), but that he personally had made none (R. 62). The Defendant stated she had made some collections while at Moab (R. 85), but that none of the money collected by herself or by Plaintiff, or by those persons hired by Plaintiff, was ever retained by or delivered to her (R. 86).

Testimony as to the amount of monies collected by Plaintiff is conflicting. Plaintiff states that the average monthly collections came to approximately \$240 a month (R. 41). The receipts for the same period, as placed in evidence by the Plaintiff show collections by him in the total amount of \$5,569.39 (R. 185). Similar discrepancies exist as to the disposition of the money collected. Plaintiff stated that he paid trailer court bills (R. 41, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 18) and payments for labor and materials (R. 41, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 18). Plaintiff also stated that he made withdrawals for personal expenses, including a dollar a day for living expenses (R. 41, 53, 54, 56, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 26), \$45 a month for some seven months for car payments (R. 42, 53, Ex. 2: Dep. VM

27), and payments to his wife in Salt Lake City (R. 42, 53, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 27). Plaintiff further stated that insufficient funds were available for improvements to the trailer court, that he had to secure additional monies from Defendant, and that her failure to provide sufficient funds held him up (R. 41, 59, 63, 64).

During the trial, Defendant called as its witness, Frank Vance, a certified public accountant with the firm of Ernst and Ernst, who testified that he had examined Plaintiff's Exhibits 5 through 14, and Defendant's Exhibit D. 15, which were all the receipts and records of disbursements which were available to the parties (R. 144). Mr. Vance stated that he could not certify that the records were a complete record of the business transactions, but that based on the records before him, certain conclusions could be drawn (R. 148). The summary by Mr. Vance for the period of six (6) months ending December 31, 1954, and the six (6) months ending June 30, 1955, show the following (R. 185), with a twelve (12) month total added:

(Summary set forth on p. 8)

Defendant testified that she secured the money paid by her from some she had saved and some she borrowed (Ex. 4: Dep. GL 15, 21). In addition some payments were made by Defendant by conveying lots (Ex. 4: Dep. GL 16). Plaintiff stated that he withdrew money for his expenses from the business (R. 21, 23, 41) but that he had no savings, no other source of income than the one month of work on the post office (R. 52) and the one hundred dollars he borrowed from his brother (R. 52).

	Defendant		Plaintiff		Other		Total	
Cash Receipts	0		2,629.89		0		2,629.89	
	0	0	2,939.50	5,569.39	0	0	2,939.50	5,569.39
	<hr/>		<hr/>		<hr/>		<hr/>	
∞ Business Disbursements	2,250.33		422.14		138.91		2,811.39	
	2,492.33	4,742.66	524.99	947.13	485.69	624.60	3,503.01	6,314.39
	<hr/>	<hr/>	<hr/>	<hr/>	<hr/>	<hr/>	<hr/>	<hr/>
Excess (Deficit) of Cash Receipts Over Business Disbursements	(2,250.33)		2,207.75		(138.91)		(181.49)	
	(2,492.33)		2,414.51		(485.69)		(563.51)	
	<hr/>		<hr/>		<hr/>		<hr/>	
		(4,742.66)		4,622.26		(624.60)		(745.00)

Plaintiff stated that receipts were to be used for trailer court improvements when available (R. 37) but that very little was (R. 56). Defendant stated that Plaintiff was to get receipts and those were to compensate him (R. 116, 117, Ex. 4: Dep. GL 10, 23) but that she was to receive part of profits, if any (R. 116, Ex. 2: Dep. GL 23), and there was no understanding Plaintiff could keep receipts over and above expenses (R. 133).

Regarding disposition of receipts and withdrawals, Plaintiff stated that he considered the monies taken by him as expense money and not as either income or a loan (Ex. 2: Dep. VM 25). Defendant filed a Federal income tax for 1954 (Exhibit 13) taking a depreciation on installed property and furnishings valued at \$532.54 and on six cabins and one lavatory valued at \$2,097.57. Rent on six frame cabins was shown as \$2,118 and expenses as \$3,243.70. No item reflected any sums withdrawn by Plaintiff. The 1955 Federal income tax of Defendant (Ex. 14) covers the entire calendar year, and again reflects no monies withdrawn by Plaintiff.

About mid-July, 1955, the Defendant and a friend visited the trailer court in Moab (R. 97). At this time the improvements of the trailer court consisted of the six wood cabins, two bathhouses with washing facilities, two septic tanks, and two wells (Ex. 2: Dep. VM 8, 12). The Plaintiff testified that he stated that at this time the work of setting up the trailer court was finished (R. 37, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 23), and that he advised the Defendant that a woman could "take care of this part of it" (R. 42) and that he asked the Defendant if she

desired to “stay down there” (R. 42). Plaintiff also testified that he asserted a desire to return to his wife in Salt Lake City but that he desired to return to the trailer court in the fall or winter (R. 43, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 23, 24). Testimony by the Defendant was that Plaintiff said “he wasn’t happy, he was tired of Moab and had had all he wanted of that kind of life” (R. 98). The friend’s testimony was that she was with Plaintiff and Defendant most of the time they were together during the trip to Moab and that she did not hear Plaintiff make any statement of an intention to return (R. 98).

Plaintiff returned to Salt Lake City on July 20, 1955 (R. 40), in the company of the Defendant and her friend, with Defendant driving one of Plaintiff’s two cars, one of which had a trailer and the other of which was quite old (Ex. 4: Dep. GL 12). Plaintiff stated that he “left tools down there” (Ex. 2: Dep. VM 30), but Defendant testified that he took his possessions with him (R. 121). The Plaintiff stated that at the time he left Moab “everything that had been mutually owed from the receipts of the trailer court had been settled (R. 59, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 18). Defendant stated that Plaintiff moved out (R. 121) and that he wanted to leave Moab (R. 88).

On July 25, 1955, Plaintiff started work as a carpenter in Salt Lake City (Ex. 2: Dep. VM 28), and he testified both that he has been continuously employed since leaving Maob and that he had not (R. 64, Ex. 2: Dep. VM 29). Plaintiff has not returned to Moab since July, 1955 (Ex. 2: Dep. VM 25).

After Plaintiff left Moab, Defendant hired a woman to run the trailer court (Dep. VM 24). When the City of Moab passed a tax on trailer homes, the trailer court business declined drastically (Ex. 4: Dep. GL 19). Thereafter, the Defendant closed the trailer court, but allowed the woman to live there and make rentals if she wished, but to pay all bills and take care of the property (R. 123).

On July 27, 1956, Plaintiff filed this suit against the Defendant alleging a partnership agreement, the conduct of the trailer court business as a partnership, and the wrongful exclusion of the Plaintiff from the business (R. 1). Plaintiff prayed for a receivership, dissolution, accounting, distribution of partnership assets, and for punitive damages (R. 2).

On September 3, 1957, the court made findings of fact and conclusions of law (R. 187, 188, 189) and based thereon entered its judgment awarding a sum of money to the Plaintiff and against the Defendant, and also decreeing a system of equal distribution of the buildings and improvements upon the property (R. 190). It is from this judgment that the Defendant appeals.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I.

THE EVIDENCE IS INSUFFICIENT TO SUPPORT THE FINDING OF THE COURT THAT THE PLAINTIFF AND DEFENDANT ENTERED INTO A PARTNERSHIP

AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND RUNNING OF A TRAILER COURT.

POINT II.

THE COURT ERRED IN RULING THAT IN JULY, 1955, THE PARTIES HAD AN ACCOUNTING AS TO INCOME RECEIVED AND EXPENDITURES MADE AS OF THAT TIME WITHOUT THE BUSINESS ASSOCIATION OF THE PARTIES BEING DISSOLVED AND TERMINATED.

POINT III.

THE COURT ERRED IN MAKING DISTRIBUTION OF PURPORTED PARTNERSHIP ASSETS IN MANNER CONTRARY TO UTAH CODE ANN. 1953, SEC. 48-1-37.

POINT IV.

THE JUDGMENT MUST FAIL BECAUSE THE FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW DO NOT SUPPORT THE JUDGMENT.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE EVIDENCE IS INSUFFICIENT TO SUPPORT THE FINDING OF THE COURT THAT THE PLAINTIFF AND DEFENDANT ENTERED INTO A PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND RUNNING OF A TRAILER COURT.

One of the findings made by the trial court is:

“1. Plaintiff and Defendant entered into a Partnership Agreement for the construction and running of a Traylor (sic) Court.” (R. 187).

This court has the responsibility to review the evidence. *Nokes v. Continental Mining & Milling Co.*, 6 Utah 2d 177, 308 P. 2d 954, at 954 (1954).

That the parties' relationship might have resulted in a partnership with profit sharing aspects in the future was not unlikely, but the only reliable evidence in the record — the conduct of the parties themselves — is conclusive to the effect that such had not yet been their agreement. There is no disagreement that there was an understanding between the Plaintiff and the Defendant for the construction and running of a trailer court at Moab, Utah. It does not follow that such an understanding meets the legal requirements for a partnership. Unless a partnership is established the Plaintiff can not claim a partner's interest in the trailer court, nor can he claim a partnership interest during the period after the association is dissolved, nor a right to any returns from the business after the association is both dissolved and terminated. The plaintiff has the burden of proving the existence of a partnership.

Benson v. Rozzelle, 85 Utah 582, 39 P. 2d 1113 (1934);

Burnett v. Lemon, 185 Ore. 54, 199 P. 2d 910 (1948).

In *Burnett v. Lemon*, 185 Ore. 54, 199 P. 2d 910, 915 (1948) the Supreme Court of Oregon, in a case strikingly

similar on its facts to the present controversy, adopted the rule of 40 *Am. Jur.*, Partnership, Sec. 43, p. 156:

“In determining whether an actual partnership relation arises from or exists by virtue of a particular agreement, one of the most widely accepted tests applicable especially as between the parties themselves, irrespective of the rights of third persons, is whether it was the intention of the parties to be partners. As between the partners, partnership rests on mutual consent, which may be manifested by the terms of their agreement, the conduct of the parties to each other under it, or by the circumstances generally surrounding the transaction in question.”

Utah Code Ann. 1953, Sec. 48-1-3, defines a partnership as:

“... an association of two or more persons to carry on as coowners a business for profit.”

(Uniform Partnership Act, Sec. 6.)

There is no written agreement between the parties. In such cases the *Utah Code Ann. 1953*, Sec. 48-1-4 provides the following pertinent rules for determining the existence of a partnership:

“In determining whether a partnership exists these rules shall apply:

* * *

- (3) The sharing of gross returns does not of itself establish a partnership, whether or not the persons sharing them have a joint or common right or interest in any property from which the returns are derived.

- (4) The receipt by a person of a share of the profits of a business is prima facie evidence that he is a partner in the business, but no such inference shall be drawn if such profits were received in payment:

* * *

- b. As wages of an employee or rent to a landlord.”

Of all the possible elements included in a partnership agreement, an agreement to share profits is an essential element of the partnership relation. As stated in 68 C.J.S., Partnership, Sec. 17, p. 427:

“An agreement to share profits, although not necessarily express, is an essential element of the partnership relationship and, at least as between the parties themselves, there must be a community of interest, or right to participate in the profits of the business or venture before it can be said that an agreement of partnership has been entered into and exists. The absence of a mutual interest in the profits is conclusive that a partnership does not exist . . .”

Although a sharing of profits raises a presumption of a partnership (*Kimball v. McCornick*, 70 Utah 189, 259 P. 313 (1927)), such is not the result if such share is received as wages of an employee. *Utah Code Ann. 1953*, 48-1-4 (4) (b). To constitute an element of a partnership, profits which a partner is to share must be real profits, not wages.

Kuenzi v. Radloff, 253 Wis. 575, 34 N.W. 2d 798 (1948);

Roberts v. Wachter, 104 Cal. App. 2d 281, 231 P. 2d 540 (1951).

Jenkins v. Harris, 19 Tenn. App. 113, 83 S.W. 2d 562, 566 (1935) holds:

“An agreement to contribute labor in consideration of receiving a part of the profits of an enterprise does not create a partnership, where such profits are paid as compensation for the labor contributed. *Wagner v. Buttles*, 151 Wis. 668, 139 N.W. 425, Ann. Cas. 1914B, 144, 147.”

Further, in *Keller v. Wixon*, 123 Utah 103, 255 P. 2d 118 (1953) this court, in discussing admissibility of evidence relating to services rendered by a partner said, at page 119:

“Section 48-1-15 (6), U.C.A. 1953, provides that ‘No partner is entitled to remuneration for acting in the partnership business, except that a surviving partner is entitled to reasonable compensation for his services in winding up the partnership affairs.’ To the same effect is *Forbes v. Butler*, 73 Utah 522, 275 P. 772, 775, wherein we stated: ‘The amount of compensation either party in a partnership or joint venture is entitled to receive, in the absence of contract otherwise, is dependent upon the profits made from such joint venture’.”

The parties clearly agreed that Plaintiff was to be allowed to withdraw sums of money for his personal needs. However, the nature of such withdrawals and what amounts were to be withdrawn is not clearly stated by either party. Both testified that they expected proceeds from the trailer court operation to be used for

expenses of clearing the land and making other improvements, but that such receipts were not, or did not appear to be adequate to provide much help and that Defendant had to supply necessary funds from her personal funds. Regarding the withdrawals made by him, Plaintiff, when asked if he offered to pay back any of the money he had taken during the time he was in Moab, replied: "No. That wasn't the bargain." (Ex. 2: Dep. VM 25). He further stated: "My time was worth her money. Time is money." and denied that he considered the money a loan or salary or anything except possibly expense money. (Ex. 2: Dep. VM 25, 26). Whatever the understanding of the parties may have been, it was indefinitely stated by both at the trial.

Other evidence available in the record sheds more light on the nature of the arrangement between the parties, but indicates that there is no mutual understanding sufficient to support the finding of a partnership.

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