1958

## Vinal Millett v. Gloria Langston : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I.

THE EVIDENCE IS SUFFICIENT TO SUPPORT THE FINDING OF THE COURT THAT THE PLAINTIFF AND DEFENDANT ENTERED INTO A PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF A TRAILER COURT.

The Trial Court found from the evidence that:

“1. Plaintiff and Defendant entered into a partnership agreement for the Construction and running of a Trailer Court” (R. 187).

In reviewing the decision of a trial court this Court has stated that it will not overturn the decision of the Trial Court unless “it is manifest that the Trial Court has misapplied proven facts or made findings clearly against the weight of the evidence.” *Ofara vs. Findlay*, 6 Ut. 2d, 102, 396 P. 2nd 1073.

From the evidence presented below, it is quite clear that the intention of the parties was to venture into the trailer court business in an attempt to realize a profit from their efforts.

In *HANSEN vs. BOGAN*, 127 Oregon 399, 272 P. 668, the Supreme Court of Oregon defined a partnership, by quoting from Chancellor Kent as follows:

“A contract of two or more competent persons to place their money, efforts, labor and skill, or some of all of them in lawful commerce or business and to divide the profit and share the loss in certain proportions.”

In addition it is well established that:

“There need be no express agreement that each party shall bear a share of any losses which may occur in the business since as a legal consequence, one participating in the profits of a partnership is held liable for a share of the losses.”

20 RCL 826, *Bentley vs. Bossard*, 33 U. 396, 94 P. 736.

The testimony of each party expressly shows that a partnership was created by their participating in the creation of operation of the Trailer Court. The Plaintiff testified as follows:

“A. Well after she kicked my brother out, we was all going thirds, see. She kicked him out and then she says, ‘Well, now you and I will split this and go half.’ She says ‘Half of everything is yours.’ (Dep. V.M. P22, ex 2).

“Q. Did you understand that half meant one-half of the property, of the real property.

“A. Half of everything.

“Q. As of what time, as of the time you left or as of the time — as of now or as of the time of the purchase?

“A. As when I left and before and all times.

“Q. So you claim—

“A. I am half owner.

“Q. You claim you own one half of the property as it now exists?

“A. Yes. She has been sending word through her mother to me at least once a week for the last six months since I entered this Court and says, ‘Now, you tell him that I am going to bargain. I am giving him half of everything.’ She is just trying to get me to cancel it.

“Q. Do you have any such statement in writing?

“A. No. How would I get it in writing when it is handed over the phone? (Dep. V. M. page 231, ex. 2).

“Well, it was on thirds when we started, and then after she released him, then she says, ‘I will give you half’ (Rec. P. 45).

The Defendant testified as to the terms of the partnership agreement as follows:

“Q. Now if this developed into a good business venture that would make money, were you to get your original investment back.

“A. I was — with the business itself, then Vinal and I would, if there were good profits, then we were to divide the profits.

“Q. Then you —

“A. Over and above after the expenses were taken out.

“Q. When you would get your money back, and then you would divide the profits.

“A. What do you mean, get my money back?

“Q. Well, you had to buy the property.

“A. The property wasn’t considered.

“Q. That wasn’t considered?

“A. The property wasn’t considered in my own mind. It wasn’t talked about that way. We talked about the proceeds from the Trailer Court only (Dep. G. L. P. 8, ex. 4).

Defendant further indicated that she understood Plaintiff’s contribution to the partnership as indicated by her testimony:

“A. Well, he didn’t have any money, and I knew it, and I was willing to buy property in my name and upon the property start a Trailer Court or a business that he and I could venture into and maybe make some money.

“Q. And what were to be — what did you say was to be his contribution?

“A. His contribution was to manage and to build up the Trailer Court to a profitable business.

"Q. Was he to perform work?

"A. He was to perform work and in return he was getting the receipts and paying miscellaneous operation expenses.

"Q. Now, this is the agreement as you entered into it in Moab is it?

"A. In Moab, yes" (Rec. P. 84, 85).

Thus the Trial Court had before it conflicting testimony as to the inclusion of the property as partnership assets, however, both parties agreed that the profits from the operation of the Trailer Court would be divided between them and in addition both parties paid the bills incurred by the business. From this evidence the Trial Court concluded, in favor of the Defendant, that the property purchased was not an asset of the partnership and that only the profits of the business and the actual buildings of the business were subject to an accounting

While it is true that the Plaintiff withdrew monthly sums for his personal expenses it was understood by the Defendant that these sums would be part of the business expenses since Plaintiff was to devote his full time and effort to the construction and operation of the business, thereby requiring certain living expenses, and that any profit from the business thereafter would be divided. This is evidenced by Defendant's testimony found on page 23 of her deposition. (Dep. G. L. ex. 4):

"Q. Now did you ever agree to pay him a salary or much per day?

"A. No, there wasn't any agreement.

"Q. How was he to be compensated for his efforts?

"A. From the receipts from the trailer court.

"Q. He was to have all the receipts?

“A. If there were any profits over and above then we were — which he never said there were — well, we just didn’t talk about it. He said there wasn’t enough money, and he used them to pay this and that and the other, and so profits weren’t even talked about. We thought that maybe it might build up into something better than it was.”

We are certainly in accord with the testimony stated in 40 Am. Jur. Sec. 43, P. 156, as quoted in Appellant’s Brief, Page 14, since the intention of the parties to operate this business as partners were understood by them and known by members of Defendant’s family (R. 101).

At no place during the trial below did Plaintiff introduce any evidence concerning the receipts and expenditures, other than those expenditures personally made by them and introduced by oral testimony, the only documentary evidence on these matters were introduced by the Defendant. From the record it is shown the Plaintiff did not know what receipts and expenditures the Plaintiff received and made since the Defendant “just looked over the books and take — and do some of the collecting herself, take the money and I suppose it was all thrown in the same bag, you know” (Record page 66) Defendant’s brief, wherein she states, on page 17, that “the records of expenditures placed in evidence by the Plaintiff accounting for expenditures of \$947.13 (R. 185) is in error, since Defendant was the one introducing the evidence. Plaintiff never received nor was he shown a profit and loss statement, or any accounting until the trial of this matter, and in fact had no knowledge of any profit made by the business until Defendant’s income tax return for 1955 was introduced into evidence.

From the evidence it is apparent that the parties entered into an agreement to operate the business as a partnership with the Defendant furnishing the basic property and funds and the

Plaintiff constructing and commencing operation of the Trailer Court. Further, the evidence supports the Trial Court's findings that there was a partnership and that it was an existence during the period complained of by the Plaintiff.

## POINT II.

THE COURT DID NOT ERR IN RULING THAT IN JULY, 1955, THE PARTIES HAD AN ACCOUNTING AS TO INCOME RECEIVED AND EXPENDITURES MADE AS OF THAT TIME WITHOUT THE BUSINESS ASSOCIATION OF THE PARTIES BEING DISSOLVED AND TERMINATED.

By its findings the Trial Court ruled that in July, 1955, the parties had an accounting and employed a third person to operate the business for them (Finding 7 R. 188).

Plaintiff maintains that there was no termination of the partnership in July, 1955, but that he, "after an absence from his wife for about 15 months, only desired to go home for a short period and that he would return in about 2 months" to continue operations. Plaintiff further contends that when he left the business in July that everything was ready for full operation and that the business should show real profits thereafter and that he expected to enjoy for his labor and troubles, one half of the profits of the business (Dep. V. M. page 23-24, ex. 2).

Both parties had contributed a good deal, Plaintiff his time and labor and Defendant her money, in order to build the business to its operating condition in July, 1955. It is inconceivable to believe that Plaintiff, just at the time when the real profits were to be made from the business would call everything even between himself and the Defendant and leave the fruits of his labor to the Defendant.

In addition Plaintiff had established a credit rating with the various businesses of Moab in order to carry on the construction and operation of the Trailer Court and it was primarily of his responsibility to discharge the obligation created by reason of such credit even though the debts were those of the partnership (Dep. V. M. P. 18).

Both parties understood their business relationship and since each had paid obligations of the business it can readily be assumed that they each recognized their responsibilities for the partnership obligations. The fact that the defendant personally paid some of the obligations is not surprising since she agreed to furnish funds for the business as her contribution (Dep. V. M. P. 20). Plaintiff did not consider himself absolved from any responsibility for the debts of the partnership after July, 1955. In fact, the Plaintiff recognized that the business was, at that time, finally in a position to make money, and that the bills owing on the construction had been settled and the business was in a position to pay them some profits (Rec. P. 59).

It appears that Defendant was the one who kept the books and records of the business and in view of the fact that the Defendant introduced evidence covering a period ending in December, 1956, the Trial Court could only make its findings based upon that evidence. The evidence did not show a dissolution of the partnership even as of the Trial Date, and the Court indicated by its Conclusions of Law that the partnership would be dissolved when the assets thereof were disposed of in accordance with the Court's Decree (Conclusion of Law, 2, Rec. P. 188).

It is submitted that the partnership has not been terminated by mutual consent or otherwise and that there still exists a partnership agreement between the parties.



### POINT III.

THE COURT DID NOT ERR IN MAKING DISTRIBUTION OF THE PARTNERSHIP ASSETS IN THE MANNER ADJUDGED.

While it is true that Ira Millet testified that he furnished material for the construction of cabins on the property involved herein, and while he had not been paid for the material, the Trial Court had before it the testimony of Ira Millet that he had furnished the material as a partner and that he did not expect to get paid for the value of the material in the same way as if he had sold it to someone (R. 75). Reasonably it can therefore be assumed that the Trial Court did not place Ira Millet in that group of Creditors to be protected by Sec. 48-1-37, Utah Code Anno. 1953.

Defendant relies largely upon the figures presented by her at the trial, which figures were based upon an audit conducted by an auditing firm employed by her. Although this audit was conducted by a Certified Public Accountant, the audit could not be certified to be correct because the records were too incomplete (R. P. 148). In view of this, the Court accepted Defendant's income tax returns as being true, rather than to rely upon the purported audit submitted (R. 135). Based upon the returns the Court reached its Conclusions concerning the profits made by the partnership business.

In ordering the distribution of the partnership assets the Trial Court considered the fact that the parties had accounted to each other in July, 1955, and that distribution should be made only of profits made after that date. Plaintiff made no withdrawals after July, 1955, thus the Court did not consider that matter.



Assuming that the figures present by Defendant's audit on page 184 of the record are correct, and giving the Defendant the benefit of payments made, we find that from July, 1955, to December 31, 1956, the business had a gross income of \$9,-429.22.

"Business disbursements" for the same period were \$7,-121.50. Other disbursements other than land payments and interest thereon, which would be excluded since the land was not part of the partnership assets, including for Defendant's benefit, the taxes paid on the land, amounted to \$711.42, subtracting the total disbursements from the gross income, leaves a net profit of \$1,596.30, which indicates if the Court erred that it did so in favor of the Defendant.

Defendant complains that the Trial Court erred in granting an IN PERSONUM money judgment against the Defendant, and cites the general rule stated in *STEINER vs. GOLDSTEIN*, 129 Cal. App. 2nd, 682, 278 P. 2nd, 22. We do not dispute the general rule cited, however, there has been recognized an exception thereto where there are no debts or liabilities to settle except as between the partners themselves, such course — the sale of partnership assets, payment of debts and a final accounting — is not necessary. *HOOPER vs. BARRANTI*, 184 P. 2d 688, *HARPER vs. LAMPING*, 33 Cal. 641, 176 P. 447.

From the evidence it appears that the Trial Court's order of distribution was equitable and just and well within the exception above noted. In order to establish an equitable distribution of the property of the partnership the Court relied upon the occupying claimants Statutes, Utah Code Ann., 1953, (Secs. 57-6-1 through 8) as a realistic method of distribution thereby affording either party the opportunity of continuing the operation of the business. It does not force Defendant to sell her prop-

erty yet it does insure that she does not gain at her partner's expense.

It is true that the Trial Court made no Finding on the question of third party liabilities, however, it may be presumed that the absence of a specific finding concerning that particular point indicates that there was not sufficient evidence to warrant it.

*Calloway vs. Twin City Creamery Co.*

190 Wash. 173, 67 P. 2d 329;

*MacDiarmid vs. McDevitt,*

97 Cal. App. 414, 275 P. 500.

It does not necessarily infer a finding against the Plaintiff.

#### POINT IV.

THE JUDGEMENT IS SUPPORTED BY THE FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND MUST STAND.

From the facts and evidence outlined in the foregoing Point the Plaintiff submits to this Court that the judgment of the Trial Court is supported by the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and that the judgment as rendered is an equitable distribution of partnership profits and assets.

## CONCLUSION

Plaintiff submits that the evidence establishes a partnership between the parties and that a distribution of the assets and an accounting of the profits is necessary and that the Trial Court had before it sufficient testimony and evidence to support the judgment entered in Plaintiff's favor.

The Plaintiff therefore prays that this Court will affirm the judgment of the lower Court, holding that there exists between the parties a partnership that the assets of such partnership should be equally distributed between the parties and that the Plaintiff should be awarded judgment against the Defendant for one-half of the profits from the operation of the partnership business as found by the Trial Court.